Public Document Pack

Your ref f /A
Our ref
Ask for Christine Lewis ks 7 GI/‘/ 6
district Ncouncil

Email christine.lewis@lichfielddc.gov.uk

www.lichfielddc.gov.uk

District Council House, Frog Lane
Lichfield, Staffordshire WS136YU

Customer Services 01543 308000
Direct Line 01543 308065

Tuesday, 3 March 2020
Dear Sir/Madam

ECONOMIC GROWTH, ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Economic Growth, Environment and Development (Overview & Scrutiny)
Committee has been arranged to take place WEDNESDAY, 11TH MARCH, 2020 at 6.00

PM IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM District Council House, Lichfield to consider the following
business.

Access to the Committee Room is via the Members’ Entrance.

Yours faithfully

Christie Tims
Head of Corporate Services and Monitoring Officer

To: Members of Economic Growth, Environment and Development (Overview &
Scrutiny) Committee

Councillors Cox (Chairman), Ball (Vice-Chair), S Wilcox (Vice-Chair), Binney,
D Ennis, Gwilt, Ho, A Little, Marshall, Parton-Hughes, Ray, Warburton and Westwood

www.lichfielddc.gov.uk n Jlichfielddc g lichfield_dc $  Mystaffs App

(a)




(a)

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 3-8

4. Work Programme 9-12

5. Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation 13-52

6. Local Plan Review Update 53 -62

7. Burntwood Development Verbal Report
8. HS2 Update Verbal Report

www.lichfielddc.gov.uk n Jlichfielddc g lichfield_dc $  Mystaffs App



Agenda Item 3

ECONOMIC GROWTH, ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (OVERVIEW

& SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

21 JANUARY 2020

PRESENT:

19

20

21

22

23

Councillors Cox (Chairman), Ball (Vice-Chair), S Wilcox (Vice-Chair), Binney, D Ennis, Gwilt,
Ho, Marshall, Parton-Hughes, Ray, Warburton and Westwood.

(In accordance with Council Procedure Rule No.17 Councillors attended the meeting).
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Clir A Little

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting as circulated were agreed and signed as a correct
record.

WORK PROGRAMME

The work programme was discussed by the Committee. Some disappointment was noted that
there had still been no report in respect of the Development of Burntwood. It was reported that
it remained on the work programme to keep minds focused and although nothing to report at
this time, the Leader and Deputy Leader would be meeting the Leader of Burntwood Town
Council shortly and would then be able to give a verbal update on the Town Deal soon.

It was confirmed that the Government had still not come to a decision on the location and
makeup of the Local Enterprise Partnerships but this would remain on the work programme
until there was.

It was also noted that there may be updates on HS2 dependant on what was decided
nationally.

It was asked if there was opportunity to consider how the Council could reduce its carbon
footprint through its activities. It was reported that Councillor A Yeates had been appointed as
Champion for this area so it may be more appropriate for the Community, Housing and Health
(Overview & Scrutiny) Committee to consider and it was agreed to scope this further.

RESOLVED: That the work programme be noted.

ECONOMIC IMPACT OF EVENTS AND FESTIVALS IN LICHFIELD CITY
The Committee received a report on the findings of the work undertaken by Bournemouth

University (BU) to assess the economic impact of key events and festivals that take place in
Lichfield City. The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for this area was in attendance and

Page 3



requested the Committees views on the outcomes from the BU study and how events and
festivals could be improved.

The Committee discussed various areas where they felt improvements could be made. The
first was to have consideration for the current businesses in the city centre. It was noted that
there had been some negative comments made in the study by local businesses and it was
suggested that there could be some compensation for those who lose income on the days
these events took place. An example was given that a baked goods stall was situated outside
a bakery. It was reported that there was currently no mechanism for compensation however
better coordination of the location of the stalls by event organisers could reduce impact. It
was asked whether offering the stall directly in front of the business to them to use themselves
could be considered. It was also noted that the use of generators was affecting businesses
and it was noted that integrated power supplies for the use of events could be considered as
part of the city centre master planning process or that businesses own supply could be used.
The Committee felt there should be some recognition of the fact that local business pay rates
and stall holders do not.

The number of events and festivals were discussed and it was agreed that there could be
scope for more however there should be a more diverse offering than currently It was felt that
there were no events to attract younger people although it was noted that the Council may not
be able to directly influence this and this demographic may just not wish to attend. It was also
discussed that events outside the city centre could be organised which in turn would create a
more varied offering including a potential Country show for the rural areas of the district.

Health and safety at events was considered and it felt that stewarding was vital. It was
proposed that a permanent team could gain experience and so add value and reduce risks. It
was felt that better stewarding could also enable access during events especially emergency
vehicles. It was noted that road closure orders stated that event organisers should allow
access and that had not always been successful. The Committee agreed that the application
process should be simplified and streamlined.

Marketing of events was then discussed and it was agreed that this was key. It was agreed
that having a single point of contact at the Council would be of great benefit and help deal with
the other points that the Committee had raised. It was discussed that a resource like this
could help enable more community based events and liaise with businesses, Cathedral, other
organisations and event organisers to ensure there was more coordination and guidance
through the whole process.

The Committee requested that the BU study key recommendations be considered further
when investigating improving the festival and events for the city along with a potential
resource for a single point of contact at the Council to help market, enable and coordinate
events. With this, there should be a simpler application process, a more diverse offering of
events that benefit the whole district.

RESOLVED: (1) That the report be noted and the views of the Committee and
recommendations of the BU Study on improving festivals and events be considered by the
Cabinet member in preparing a policy approach for LDC.

(2) That the following recommendations from the Bournemouth University
report (page 22) be considered further

“The key events programme brings socio-economic benefits to the city, and consideration
should be given to enhance and develop it further.

It is suggested that event organisers should look to work more closely and collaboratively with
the council and local businesses. Improved communications from event organisers to local
businesses would be beneficial. This should include making them aware of any road closures,
and any opportunities there are for businesses to get involved with their event.

Page 4



24

More events could be encouraged throughout the year to account for seasonal peaks and
troughs. A more varied event programme, celebrating the history and heritage of Lichfield may
also attract a wider audience.

There should be more promotion and marketing of events to increase awareness of them.
Events should be promoted to a wider audience within a 2 hour drive of Lichfield to encourage
more non-locals to attend.

It is also important that key events reflect what they are marketed as, with stalls, activities and
products reflecting the theme of the event.

Greater consideration should be given to the layout and placement of stalls at events. Through
working with local businesses, event organisers should look to place stalls which result in
minimal congestion or in areas that will not cause issues with local businesses.”

LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE CAR PARKING

The Committee received a report on the current occupancy levels, fee income and proposed
improvements to the car parking estate within the ownership of Lichfield District Council. The
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member requested the Committee’s views on Sunday charging
and potential betterment of the service provided.

The current charging regime was reported and that there was one set of charges for Monday
to Saturday and then £1 charge for Sunday parking. It was reported that there were
contemplations of charging the midweek amount on Sundays to bring in extra income that
could be used for improvements including more cashless payment systems, more electric
vehicle (EV) charging points and digital messaging signage to aid car park users.

It was asked how much income would be raised if the extra charges were brought in. It was
confirmed that there would not be any extra charging on evenings and with the Sunday alone,
it would be approximately £176k but noted that this would be if parking use was as it was at
this point and not reduced, which there was a risk of.

The Committee had many concerns that they felt should be considered or investigated further
before any progression was made. The first was the effect it could have on the high street
and trading as well as the attractiveness of events that were held on the weekend. Members
were concerned that it may not be the right time to introduce extra charging as other close
areas outside the district were offering better retail experiences with free parking namely
Ventura Park in Tamworth and the soon to be completed McArthur Glen Outlet at Cannock
Chase. It was asked whether car park charging in other authorities were considered and it
was reported that there was regular benchmarking carried out. It was reported that there
would have to be a good communications plan to ensure visitors understood the benefits to
the service

It was discussed that the city was a religious centre and it may not be fair to charge
worshipers and it was suggested to charge the current £1 for the first two hours then the
proposed charge after that to help mitigate this concern. It was added that this may help
people who leave their vehicles overnight.

When suggested that charging may encourage people to use public transport more it was
noted that the Sunday bus service was reducing and was still a cost similar to the proposed
charge so many people may stay at home and order online.

There was some suggestion that there should be no charge at all on a Sunday to encourage
local shopping and community benefit.

Page 5



25

26

Overall, the Committee agreed with the need to better the car parking provided and
investigations for investing in improvements and EV charging but felt the proposed rise in
income would not be enough and so other sources should be investigated. It was felt that the
projects should be scoped and costed before any decision on charging was made. It was felt
that clear communications as to the benefits of the improvements would have to be made
especially as investment in EV charging would only benefit a few users to begin with.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and the Committees views be taken into account and a
further report be submitted when ready on the scope and costs of improvement works to car
parking.

LOCAL PLAN UPDATE

The Committee received a report updating Members on the consultation on the Local Plan
Review Preferred Options document. It was reported that the Leader and Deputy Leader had
met with local groups including the Burntwood Action Group and there had been a number of
consultation events.

It was reported that residents in Fazeley opposed development in the green belt in that area
and traffic was already a concern due to Drayton Manor Theme Park and it was asked if
Staffordshire County Council had been asked for views and it was reported that they had been
consulted. It was also noted that the preferred options were to encourage growth and help
areas meet their own housing needs. It was suggested that residents of that area be
encouraged to submit representations to ensure all views were considered. It was requested
that SCC be invited to a meeting to discuss infrastructure further with the Committee.

It was asked why greenbelt land at Hammerwich had been reclassified from ‘important’ to
‘moderate’ as the area was of historical importance. It was reported there were no proposal to
remove this land from the green belt.

Neighbourhood plans were discussed and the Committee were pleased to note the progress
made by Burntwood Town Council in developing their plan. It was noted that Kings Bromley
had also progressed their plan

Thanks were given to the Development Plans team for their hard work.

RESOLVED: (1) That the progress associated with the Local Plan Review be noted;

(2) That the progress associated with the evidence base being advanced to
support the local plan review be noted; and

(3) That the recent progress in relation to neighbourhood plans within
Lichfield District be noted; and

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY AND SECTION 106 UPDATE

The Committee received a report updating them in terms of the administration and progress of
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the use of develop contributions to provide key
infrastructure, in particular affordable housing. It was reported that there would be a review of
the Regulation 123 list to bring the Council in line with regulatory changes.

Page 6



Discussions centred on affordable housing and there were concerns that 50% CIL monies
went to Lichfield City area however there were far less than 50% of the affordable homes for
the district, built in the city. It was felt that CIL, S106 and affordable housing should be
investigated in more detail and it was suggested that there be a Member Task group created
to do this.

It was felt that this group could look at where charging could be introduced including for
apartment development as well as the level of offsite contributions as in some cases, this had
been smaller than expected. It was reported that one issue was the desire to promote
development of brownfield sites however the extra work involved in making the land
acceptable to build on lessened the viability to have affordable housing.

It was agreed that there may need to have some input from the Community, Housing & Health
(Overview & Scrutiny) Committee as they have the remit for affordable housing although not
the planning policy for it.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and further items be added to the work programme.

(The Meeting closed at 8.35 pm)

CHAIRMAN

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



6 obed

ECONOMIC GROWTH, ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2019-20

20 18 17 21 11

Item June Sept Dec Jan Mar Details/Reasons Officer Member Lead
Policy Development
Terms of Reference v To note CEQ\?\}E °
ﬁ&i?ﬁgf Q]ES to To report on proposed changes to
Buildings of Local 4 the Local List Claire Hines Cllrl,_Aan)?ela
Architectural and
Historic Interest

To receive a briefing paper on

Economic . economic development activity
development activity across the district and performance | Jonathan | E o e
and performance of the local economy Percival
Master Planning . . Craig . .
Consultation v Special meeting Jordan Clir lain Eadie

¥ wal| epuaby



0T obed

ECONOMIC GROWTH, ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2019-20

20 18 17 21 11
Item June Sept Dec Jan Mar Details/Reasons Officer Member Lead

To receive a briefing paper on the

Small Business grant * ‘B’pefat'on of thte Cﬁuncn s Small Jonathan Clir 1ain Eadie

scheme usiness grant scheme Percival
Reports on progress with the Ashley . .

v v v .

Local Plan Updates v preparation of the Local Plan Baldwin CliIr lain Eadie

Briefing paper(s) on
. . v v Neighbourhood Plan preparation,

Spatial planning . Ashley . .

matters S106 a}nd CIL recglpt.s and Baldwin Clir lain Eadie
allocations & monitoring and
implementation of policies

Lichfield City Centre

future planning " " v v To report on the appointment of Craig

(including consultants and subsequent Clir lain Eadie

. ) Jordan

Birmingham Road master planning work

site)

Burntwood . Craig . .

development 4 Updates when available Jordan CliIr lain Eadie




TT abed

ECONOMIC GROWTH, ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2019-20

festivals held in Lichfield

20 18 17 21 11
Item June Sept Dec Jan Mar Details/Reasons Officer Member Lead
Review of the , Repor:(t_ to cgnsider a full year of Claire Clir Andela
operation of the operation since review. Billings/ Jeff L 9
. . ax
Planning Committee Upton
Briefing paper on
Development , L, 6 monthly reporting of planning Claire Clir Angela
Management performance Billings Lax
performance
Outcome of Government review
into Local Enterprise Partnerships
Ou’gcome of LEP 4 verbal update if necessary, report Craig Clir lain Eadie
review o . Jordan
or briefing paper depending on
outcome of review and implications
for District when available
Economic impact of * 4 To repO'.'t ona sttudyfasse?[sing(;he Lisa ClIr lain Eadie
Events and Festivals economic Impacts of events an Clemson




2T obed

ECONOMIC GROWTH, ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2019-20

district.

20 18 17 21 11
Item June Sept Dec Jan Mar Details/Reasons Officer Member Lead
To report on the Council’s car
Car parking estate % parking estate and operations John ClIr lain Eadie
and operations Roobottom
Possible briefing note
Review of how the council is using
, s106 to deliver affordable housing;
CIL and s106 how CIL is delivering infrastructure Ashley ClIr 1ain Eadie
improvements and whether the Baldwin
council’s CIL charging regime
remains appropriate.
. To receive a briefing paper(s) on
; issues relating to Phase 1 and 2a Craig : :
High Speed 2 v of HS2 as they impact on Lichfield Jordan Clir lain Eadie




Agenda Item 5

Lichfield City Centre Masterplan e
Report of the Cabinet Member for Investment, Economic Growth & Tourism L’] C“, gl
Councillor I. Eadie district Ncouncil
Date: 11* March 2020 www.lichfielddc.gov.uk
Contact Officer: Helen Bielby

Tel Number: 01543 308252 Economic Growth,

Email: Helen.bielby@lichfielddc.gov.uk Environment and

Local Ward All Members Development (Overview
Members

and Scrutiny)
Committee

Executive Summary

1.1

Following the agreement of the District Council to publish the draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan, a
public consultation took place over four weeks in January/February 2020 to establish the views and
opinions of key stakeholders and the wider public to the proposals contained within the document.
This report summarises the representations received, gives some detail to the changes to the
document as a result of this and outlines the proposed actions going forward.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Committee notes the consultation responses to the Lichfield City Centre Masterplan and
recommends that, subject to changes to the document resulting from the consultation, Cabinet
approve the document as a basis for the Council’s ambitions for development within Lichfield City
Centre.

Background

3.1

3.2

3.3

David Lock Associates were commissioned in July 2019 to undertake work to formulate a Masterplan
for Lichfield City Centre. Following an Analysis, Issues and Options exercise, a draft Masterplan was
duly prepared.

Public consultation on the draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan took place from the 6th January 2020
to 3rd February 2020. A ‘drop in’ event took place on the 17th and 18th January at St. Marys and
approx. 1100 people attended and spoke to both the consultants and District Council representatives.
The exhibition boards available at the drop-in events summarised the content of the Masterplan
document. The consultation was also advertised in the Lichfield Mercury on 2nd and 16th January
2020, with copies of the draft Masterplan available to view at the District Council House. Flyers
summarising the content of the draft Masterplan were made available at Lichfield library, Lichfield City
Council offices and via distribution to tenants by Three Spires Shopping Centre management.

A total of 141 responses were received from local residents and local interest groups and organisations
via either online or via a paper questionnaire. In addition a number of organisations and individuals
responded via letter or email.

Page 13




3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

A draft report on the consultation has been produced by DLA (attached at Appendix A including a
breakdown of representations at Appendix 1 to that document) which explains the process that has
been undertaken for the public consultation, an analysis of the responses received and a breakdown of
who responded. It is noted that whilst 30% of respondents did not state their age (including
organisations), of those that did, under 18’s formed the largest group to respond (24%). This is
encouraging as it is not typical for this age group to respond well to this type of consultation. 85% of
respondents identified as residents while 32% work in Lichfield. 94% of respondents said that they
shop in Lichfield. A list of organisations that responded is included in DLA’s Consultation Report.

Overall the feedback received was positive with 77% of respondents answering ‘Yes’ to the question
“Do you think that the overall strategy is correct”. One issue regarding this from a number of
respondents was whether there should be more focus on sustainability and carbon neutral initiatives
within the plan. Furthermore concerns were raised that the cumulative scale of future development
proposals seems out of character with the realistic capacity of the historic environment.

In terms of the Birmingham Road Gateway, 78% of respondents answered yes to “Do you think the
‘Birmingham Road Gateway’ development opportunity will help improve the city centre?” Further
feedback included the need for more affordable housing, car parking need/issues and consideration of
public open space to be incorporated into the proposals.

72% of respondents agreed that the District Council House development opportunity would help to
improve the city centre. Concerns were raised about the type of uses proposed, separation of building
ownership and also car parking.

One key issue is the Bird Street Courtyard proposals. This garnered more individual responses than the
other proposed development opportunities. 75% of respondents answered ‘Yes’ to the question “Do
you think the ‘Bird Street Courtyard’ development opportunity will help improve the city centre?”.
Additional comments included that the B&M store and adjacent Staffordshire County Council land
should be incorporated into the proposals, that the NCN Cycle Route currently sited in the car park
should be mentioned and historic landforms should be reflected. Concerns have been raised regarding
loss of car parking, building heights, layout and design and views into/out of the site need to be
carefully considered.

In response to the issue of development on the University West car park, 67% of respondents agreed
that this would help improve the city centre. Concerns were again raised regarding permanent loss of
open space that was previously on the site, loss of car parking and design/layout and use of potential
buildings. The use of the land for educational space was also raised.

In terms of other development sites, respondents raised the development at the former Angel Croft
(Beacon Street), the land at Quonians Lane and land at Stowe Road. Land at Sandford Street car parks
and Swan Road/Friary Car parks was also put forward as development sites. A suggestion for a multi-
purpose outside space for market traders was also made.

The ideas contained within the plan to help pedestrian accessibility to the city centre from Lichfield
City train station by way of the ‘Birmingham Road Corridor’ interventions was supported by 88% of
Page 14



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

respondents. Many responses had specific ideas for how this could be implemented including
overpass/underpass from the railway station, synchronisation of traffic light junctions and changes to
the highway in general. In addition 83% of respondents agreed that the proposed’ Lichfield Transport
Hub’ would enhance the arrival experience to the city by bus, coach, train and taxi but raised concerns
that the bus station must be of a size to allow for future expansion and that there should be an
enclosed waiting area. .

Although 81% of respondents agreed that a Circular Minster Pool Walk would encourage more people
to use the Minster Pool area there was some opposition to this proposal due to concerns about impact
on the biodiversity, trees and tranquillity of the area. In addition 80% of respondents agreed that the
‘Bird Street Walk’ proposals would make the route safer and more welcoming, although having looked
at this proposal again DLA have concluded that the existing width of the passageway is considered too
restrictive to permit the potential for any real improvements.

There was good support (77%) for the ideas of pedestrian priority streets and improvements to
pedestrian walkways and linkages. However there was mixed views to the reopening of lower Bore
Street. It was also raised that pedestrian priority streets need better enforcement, that they should not
exclude cyclists and that the whole of the city centre could be pedestrianised. Moreover that noise and
light pollution must be considered. In addition 93% of respondents supported the strategy to improve
pedestrian walkways and linkages, with ideas including large city centre maps to be displayed in the
city. Respondents also encouraged a review of street furniture and that heritage improvements could
be referenced such as shop front improvements, tourism signage and a revival of heritage features
within the public realm. Other public realm suggestions included more opportunities for cycling
(including cycle paths and cycle stands) and further referencing of heritage assets within the public
realm.

82% of respondents answered ‘Yes’ to the question “Do you think the Delivery Strategy provides a
sensible way forward for implementing the masterplan”, it is noted that a number of respondents
consider that the Birmingham Road gateway site should be a delivery priority but that the commercial
elements to be delivered should take place in parallel with public realm improvements. Questions were
also raised regarding funding of developments and public realm projects.

Other comments have been raised and these are summarised within the DLA report. These include the
connectivity issues between Lichfield City and Lichfield Trent Valley, more support to attractions such
as the Cathedral and the tourism economy and the use of VMS car parking signs and the installation of
more EV charging points. Moreover a number of organisations have requested to be further consulted
in regards to future development proposals.

All comments received have been noted and analysed. Changes to the document have been proposed
by DLA as result of these comments. These include wording/sentence changes as well as other changes
including changing some of the detail of the proposed development opportunities, the finer detail of
which would be considered further via site development briefs or similar. For example, DLA have
responded to the representations regarding Bird Street car park redevelopment with proposed
changes to the brief comprising an emphasis on (a) environmental enhancements in the short-term;
with (b) a longer-term opportunity for comprehensive development. It is noted that the Masterplan
Objectives, Masterplan Quarters, Transition Areas and Design Principles would remain broadly the
same.

Page 15



3.17 Chapter 5 of the Masterplan details how the strategies and proposals contained within the document
could be delivered. High level viability testing has been used to ensure that the proposals are feasible
and deliverable, subject to costs that cannot be quantified until the process is further advanced,
including site abnormals’, CPO and legal costs, off-site costs etc. The document envisages a 20 year
implementation process and considers the Council’s role in implementing and funding the key projects.

3.18 Itis proposed that the final version of the Masterplan, once approved by the Council, will be used as a
base document, from which further plans/strategies for the finer detail regarding the development of
the city centre will emerge. This documents could include; a Car Parking Strategy, a Public Realm
Strategy and further consideration of Connectivity into an out of the city centre to local towns and
villages as well as key transport nodes such as Lichfield Trent Valley. These plans and strategies will
include implementation project proposals, giving key consideration to viability and delivery of said

projects.

Alternative Options 1. Members could request fundamental changes to the draft Masterplan prior
to its adoption by the Council. This would require a further commission to the
consultants to review and significantly amend the work that has been produced to
date.

Consultation 1. The draft Masterplan has been subject to public consultation as outlined in

the main body of this report.

Financial 1. Although there are no financial implications arising out of this report it must

Implications be noted that the implementation of the projects included in this document

may require significant capital funding from the District Council.

Contribution to the 1. The master planning process will help support and deliver the Council’s

Delivery of the strategic objective of promoting a vibrant and prosperous economy.

2. It will also support the priorities of achieving healthy and safe communities

Strategic Plan , ,
and clean, green and welcoming places to live.

Equality, Diversity 1. None

and Human Rights

Implications

Crime & Safety 1. None

Issues

Environmental 1. None directly from this decision, although some of the plans and strategies
Impact will be able to contribute to the Council’s ambitions regarding sustainable

development

GDPR/Privacy 1. Not applicable
Impact Assessment

Risk Description How We Manage It Severity of Risk (RYG)

Page 16




A The draft masterplan is not Members have played an active partin | Yellow
recommended by the Committee to the formulation of the document and
be adopted by the Council have had the opportunity to provide
consultation responses to the draft
plan.
B Some of the proposals contained The public consultation has Yellow

within the masterplan may not be
welcomed by all stakeholders

demonstrated considerable support
for the proposals included in the
masterplan. Further public
consultation may take place on specific
development opportunities prior to
statutory consultation via planning
applications etc

o0

Background documents

Draft City Centre Masterplan (DLA Associates)

Consultation Report (February 2020)

Relevant web links

Page 17




This page is intentionally left blank



Lichfield District Council Lichfield City Centre February 2020
Masterplan
Consultation Report

Consultation Report
Lichfield City Centre Masterplan

| DAVID LOCK
') ASSOCIATES
Page 19



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan

Consultation Report

Lichfield District Council

CONTENTS

1.0 INTRODUCTION ...ttt tee e s easteeeateeessteeaaseeeanteeeanseeaasseeanseeeanseeanseeeanseeens
(0fe] o 1S U1 I =1 Lo o I o] o Lot cT- TS USRI

2.0 OVERVIEW OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES........cccciiiiiiiiiieieeniie e
Stage One: Baseline review and analysSis .......cccoooiiiiiiiii e
Stage Two: Draft Masterplan consultation..........ccccco i1

3.0 SCHEDULE OF KEY CHANGES TO THE MASTERPLAN .......ccccoiiiiiiiieieeseesieenieene
Changes to draft MASTerPIAN ...t

4.0 CONCLUSIONS ... ..o e

APPENDICES

Appendix 1A
Appendix 1B
Appendix 1C
Appendix 1D
Appendix 1E
Appendix 1F
Appendix 2

Press adverts

Consultation flyer

Consultation leaflet

Consultation questionnaire (online version)

Consultation questionnaire (paper version)

Public consultation boards

Draft Masterplan Consultation — Summary of responses received

David Lock Associates
February 2020

Page 20

Page | 2



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 A consultation process took place to enable local stakeholders, interest groups, residents and
businesses of Lichfield and the surrounding area to have their say on the Lichfield City Centre
Masterplan. Comments received as part of this consultation process have helped shape and
evolve the Masterplan.

1.2 This Consultation Statement articulates the main issues raised by respondents as part of the
consultation process and identifies how those issues have been addressed in the Lichfield City
Centre Masterplan.

Consultation process

1.3 The draft Masterplan was informed by the feedback provided from previous stakeholder and
community engagement exercises, particularly those which focussed on the Birmingham Road
site in Spring 2019. This was supplemented with a number of one-to-one conversations with key
officers, local elected members, members of the project group and key stakeholders.

1.4 The following stakeholders, identified by Lichfield District Council, anticipated to have an interest
in the Lichfield City Centre Masterplan, were invited to engage in the consultation process:

e Leader, Lichfield District Council (LDC)
e Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for Investment, Economic Growth and Tourism, LDC
e Officer Working Group for the Lichfield City Centre Masterplan, including:
0 Assistant Director, Business & Enterprise, Staffordshire County Council (SCC)
o Group Manager, Community Highway Liaison, SCC
0 Assistant Chief Executive, LDC
o Head of Economic Growth, LDC
o Policy Officer, LDC
o0 Clerk of Lichfield City Council (LCC)
e Economic Growth, Environment and Development (Overview & Scrutiny) Committee, LDC
e Beacon Street Area Residents Association
e Birmingham Chambers of Commerce
e Leomansley Area Residents Association
e Lichfield Arts
e Lichfield Cathedral
e Lichfield City Centre Strategic Partnership
e Lichfield City Councillors
e Lichfield Chamber of Trade and Commerce
e Lichfield Civic Society
e Lichfield District Councillors
e Lichfield Garrick Theatre
e Staffordshire University / South Staffordshire College
e Three Spires Shopping Centre

David Lock Associates Page | 3
February 2020

Page 21



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

1.5 The Draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan report was subject to a four-week period of consultation
with residents and secondary school students of, businesses and services in, and visitors to the
city, as well as other stakeholders. Consultation on the draft Masterplan was open from 6t
January to 3 February 2020. During this time, the public were asked for their views on the
content of the draft Masterplan, including the suggested Development Opportunities and Public
Realm Priorities for the city centre.

1.6 The consultation was advertised in the Lichfield Mercury on 2 January 2020 and 16 January 2020
(copy of press advert available at Appendix 1A).

1.7 Copies of the draft Masterplan consultation document were made available for public inspection
between the consultation dates, at the District Council House, Frog Lane, Lichfield, WS13 6YU.
Copies of the draft Masterplan flyer (Appendix 1B) and leaflet (Appendix 1C), summarising the
content of the Masterplan document were distributed to the following locations for wider
information and dissemination:

e Lichfield Library, The Guild of St Mary’s Centre, Market Square, Lichfield, WS13 6LG
e Lichfield District Council House, Frog Lane, Lichfield, WS13 6YU

e Lichfield City Council, Donegal House, Bore Street, Lichfield, WS13 6LU

e Three Spires Shopping Centre, 12 Gresley Row, Lichfield, WS13 6JF

1.8 The public consultation involved a questionnaire survey which members of the public were invited
to complete. An online interactive version of the questionnaire was made available at:
www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/lichfieldmasterplan to make it even easier for people to give their views
and to encourage a broad demographic of the local population to participate (screenshots of the
online version of the questionnaire available at Appendix 1D). The online questionnaire was
provided in addition to a downloadable Word version of the questionnaire (hard copy questionnaire
available at Appendix 1E), for those who preferred to complete the questionnaire in the more
conventional way.

1.9 Public drop-in events were held at Lichfield Library on Friday 17 January between 9am and 5pm
and on Saturday 18 January between 9am and 4pm. The exhibition boards available at these
drop-in events summarised the content of the Masterplan document (Appendix 1F). A team
from David Lock Associates were available at the events to talk through the proposals and to
answer questions.

1.10 An estimated 550 people visited the exhibition event on the Saturday, with a similar number of
visitors on the Friday. This is calculated on the basis of the total number of people which entered
Lichfield Library during the exhibition events (1,400 people), compared with the number of visitors
to the Library on the previous Saturday (850 people).

David Lock Associates Page | 4
February 2020

Page 22



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report

Lichfield District Council

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

OVERVIEW OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Stage One: Baseline review and analysis

The first stage was analysis and review of all existing information about the city centre. This stage
of the masterplan built on work already undertaken by the District Council, including issues
identified through previous stakeholder and community engagement exercises, particularly those
which focussed on the Birmingham Road site in Spring 2019.

The evidence base was supplemented by a number of initial one-to-one conversations with key
officers, local elected members, members of the project group and key stakeholders. The
‘Analysis, Issues and Options Report’ is the culmination of the stage one work.

Stage Two: Draft Masterplan consultation

A total of 141 responses were received from local residents and local interest groups and
organisations on the draft Masterplan consultation. 98 of these were received through the POP
consultation app, 13 as completed questionnaires, and 30 by email (without a questionnaire).

In our experience, this is a typical level of response for a project of this nature, at the Draft
Masterplan consultation stage. A greater level of responses are typically received earlier in the
process, in response to the ‘Issues’ stage of a City Masterplan, with fewer responses at the ‘Draft’
Masterplan stage.

Most age groups were well-represented, with the under 18s providing the highest percentage of
responses. All under 18 responses were received through the POP consultation app.

. Under 18: 24%
. 18-34: 6%

. 35-64: 20%
. 65+ 19%

. Unspecified:  30% (no entry supplied, or organisation)

The number of ‘under 18’s’ responding to the consultation is not typical for a consultation of this
nature, which is very encouraging. This would suggest that the interactive nature of the POP
consultation app was particularly successful in appealing to this younger demographic.

85% of respondents identified as residents, while 32% work in Lichfield. A significant 94% of
respondents stated that they shop in Lichfield.

In undertaking the consultation questionnaire, no information was collected on individual names
or personal addresses, in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018.

Responses from specific groups/organisations comprised the following:

. Beacon Street Area Residents . Lichfield District Council’s
Association Conservation Team

. Environment Agency . Lichfield District Council’s

. Friel Homes Ecology Team

. Historic England Lichfield ReCycle

. Leomansley Area Residents Redleaf

Association
Lichfield Cathedral
Lichfield City Council SCC Highways

Lichfield City Councillors Staffordshire Gardens & Parks
Lichfield Civic Society Trust

o Lichfield District Councillors

Trustees of St Johns Hospital
SCC Economic Development

2.10 After this period of consultation on the draft masterplan, comments have been analysed and

recommendations provided (see Appendix 1).

David Lock Associates Page | 5
February 2020

Page 23



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report

Lichfield District Council

3.0 SCHEDULE OF KEY CHANGES TO THE MASTERPLAN

3.1 In undertaking consultation on the draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan document, all responses
have been recorded and reviewed. These responses have informed the final masterplan
document, where appropriate and are summarised in Appendix 2.

3.2 Due to the Data Protection Act 2018, no personal information (including the names of individuals,
groups or businesses) has been included within this Consultation Report and all comments set out
in Appendix 2 remain anonymous.

3.3 The key changes made as a result of the representations received are summarised below.
Changes to draft Masterplan

3.4 The responses received as part of the public consultation on the draft Masterplan document has
informed the final Masterplan for Lichfield city centre. The key representations which helped shape
and evolve the draft Masterplan include:

Masterplan Context & Analysis

» Amendment to Masterplan Objective 5, to ensure that public realm improvements
(Quality Accessible Environment) ensures that any such improvements are sensitive to
existing residents with respect to noise and light pollution;

Correction of typographical error referring to ‘Rectory Lane’ rather than ‘Reeve Lane’;
Amendment to emphasise the need for any future development proposed within the City
Centre East Transition Area to not harm the significance of heritage assets;

» Amendment to wording to provide for heritage assets being ‘protected’ rather than
‘preserved’;

» Amendment to wording to replace references to listed buildings with the fuller
description of heritage assets;

» Spires of St Michael’s Churches to be referenced, in addition to those of St Mary’s (and
the Cathedral);

> Biodiversity Net Gain to be referenced under Masterplan Objective 6 (The Green and
sustainable City); and

» Road names added to Masterplan Quarters, for clarity.

Development Opportunities:

1. Birmingham Road Gateway

» Development to be designed to manage the interface between the proposed
restautant/café offer and the bus station at the Birmingham Road Gateway Development
Opportunity;

» Additional text to emphasise the need for any new development in close proximity to
Lichfield City Railway Station to be subject to negotiations with Network Rail;

» The Trustees of St John’s Hospital to be added as a consultee as part of future
development proposals at the Birmingham Road Gateway Development Opportunity site
with LDC; and
Correction of leaseholder status of existing multi-storey car park on Birmingham Road.
District Council House
Removal of reference to the future use of the Council Chamber as a wedding/occasion
venue, to allow for more flexible use of the space; and

» Use of the Council House car park in the evenings and weekends to be clarified as being
maintained, where practicable.

David Lock Associates Page | 6

February 2020

Page 24



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

Bird Street Courtyard

Environmental enhancements at the Bird Street Courtyard to be emphasised within the
short-term, with a longer-term opportunity for a more comprehensive development of
the site and available adjacent buildings;

» Additional reference to improvements to the strategic cycle network through Bird Street
Courtyard along the Sustrans route, to include new surface treatment to provide a
clearer and safer route;

» Clarification to be provided in relation to proposed storey heights at Bird Street
Courtyard, to identify that whilst 3-storeys on this site might be difficult to achieve due
to the sensitivity of the setting, a cross-check viability assessment reducing the
development as currently configured to 2-storeys, indicates that a reduced height
scheme on the same footprint would be marginally unviable. If 3-storeys are deemed
unacceptable, reviewing the design or including further landownerships may be
necessary to improve the viability position;

» Clarification to be provided in relation storey heights within Bird Street Courtyard;
heights to be established through detailed design work, whilst maintaining vistas of the
Cathedral spires;

» Clarification that the majority of the retained car parking spaces within Bird Street
Courtyard would be prioritised for blue badge holders;

» Clarification that Historic England and SCC’s Historic Environment team would be
consulted on any planning application at Bird Street Courtyard;

» Wider landownerships of LDC and SCC around Bird Street Courtyard added to illustrative
masterplan extract plan for added clarity;

Cross-reference made to the 2010 Development Brief for Bird Street Car Park; and

Additional reference to new cycle parking facilities across the city centre at key locations,
including at Bird Street Courtyard.

University West Car Park

» Amendment to potential uses as part of the University West Car Park Development
Opportunity, to allow for educational uses or commercial business space.

A. Birmingham Road Corridor
[no change proposed].

B. Lichfield Transport Hub
[no change proposed].

C. Bird Street Walk
[no change proposed].

D. Circular Minster Pool Walk

» Amendment to Circular Minster Pool Walk to emphasise that the proposed northern route
would be a footpath-only route to retain the tranquillity of this area.

E. Pedestrian Priority Streets
[no change proposed].

F. Pedestrian Walkways & Linkages
[no change proposed].

G. Signage and Wayfinding

[no change proposed].

David Lock Associates Page | 7
February 2020

Page 25



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

Delivery Strategy

» Delivery Strategy to be corrected in relation to the anticipated phasing for the
Birmingham Road Gateway Development Opportunity;

» Private landownership of the Garden of remembrance, in relation to the Circular Minster
Pool Walk to be referenced within the Delivery Strategy; and

» Status of transport funding from SCC in relation to the Birmingham Road Corridor
(including improvements for sustainable transport) to be clarified.

Other Comments
» Reference to the need for LDC to prepare a Car Parking Strategy for the city centre; and

» Enhanced reference to the importance of the Cathedral in the context of the City Centre
Masterplan.

David Lock Associates Page | 8
February 2020

Page 26



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

4.0 CONCLUSIONS

4.1 This Consultation Statement sets out the consultation process which has taken place to enable
local stakeholders, interest groups, residents and businesses of Lichfield and the surrounding area
to have their say on the Lichfield City Centre Masterplan.

4.2 Public consultation was undertaken on the draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan between 6t
January to 3™ February 2020. In undertaking this public consultation, every response received
has been recorded and considered. These responses have informed the final masterplan
document, where appropriate, to provide a delivery mechanism tool to enable Lichfield District
Council to help bring forward new development and the stated ambitions for the future city centre
of Lichfield.

David Lock Associates Page | 9
February 2020

Page 27



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan

Consultation Report

Lichfield District Council

Appendix 1A

2 LICHYTELD MERCURY %/as

Press adverts

TIAY, JANLIASY . 30T

#Mercury Register to have say (ol
ot oot ' leader hits
i il’s plan for 2o
-y ] On coun.c p an criticism of
= === the next four years .-.=.
P—— LD ATss ! sy B iy
SesuCrmiios | OOST BaGRSE | WCVTIZLD hstncs Councll s right prinithes for the disict These  Mestbe lor Clsomes Svicm, & | g bmages displeped aund
= . lirgg B Feakiieiats vs Peghvier B arv “h0 Fabile prophe, chape phae,  bumsaton, skl Thes b pnd | the Bcinbeghus Rosd deved
'-Nﬂ'll-'l_l'.l'ﬂl":" ke it b @ hecws grongp ta gve develop ioaperiny ke Be a pood | chanee s el os what e think of | opesenl se from the beades
Jrespimal by ity sl mparette ey your Beedback oo o fous-pear plan ool thit mnowstes sl pon im0 mi geissities snd 0 g o et | o the Labour Gmup.
ldﬂ:ﬂ-ﬂu i wrtl] st i pririnies. ez i the bt of ol n doe”  llems Counicilln  Swven N
B R L e e Thet muthatty i putting iogeter  The (ks rovidents wil have  “We bope plenty of people fres | mas b sl dwi e pic
'."::_“- 'ﬂ i it sy it il et o et chaneoe 1o give their views sbont vight acmmss the dimnicy will g | e ee “daapyminnng”
vl nabbsimainad Vo ey Witk Ko the ool from 2000 e fhe emesging plin st two locus iwvobd i belping us o develep | anil hed belleved et the
e - s o0 Tharsdey, lemmary 8 iy wtamghe jilan” U000 cowi “ww lor o
Cormdotions & oompisinta LDC sayy W will Blp hocws on The Sed feces gruup will e sl Toergvier yoss interesi o smend veinks puilick Dun ciiines

st b linsportass leeally amud iy

[Hwriey Comnail Fiomse-on Pog |sne

ing el the docus protpe. jaesse

ol wivemisng  poeier

e - O peaneres sl Daidger whers fley 0 Lichield fom Spui te dpm. The emall  aliesn bowengichBsldds | mages”
Mummﬂri‘m il bve g st bt ool Bl weiond will pak place o Barmnecosd g on cell 0150 X0ES *] coepinl il because
b e e 1 1l B Tl Lo

e sl laincases
The cominidl weys @ o nessls
o b O i b bt e

Mrmorial Lnminae Bom Spm o

Tpm.
Commscillur Amaby Sesiib, Cabinet pian

T Bnd el moofo, g i e
Mebdipbdde gov.ub) Srafiumarmghc

the s was @ the ennenoe
m the wity aned may ol he
wncerdl for antder decsds

Hmm‘:_--"“l . wumething nesdel @ be
" L

e ieencea. Chance to give views on city's | e o o s s

H L ihad Yo awrn 2 T LR LD rwestersty hufes @ Thaern il W b b drorin e of s may 5 well weth ronncme comlioes wll

Lier obt if e w0, epertuy” W e el sy i wwnty o Lichllhd Lilrary an -u.:n wictanily -

i . SR W ik wtial e £y okl B b Ll i Tiidayl dacnanry 17, Lubuesn G 0 i T, et T T BT “erwern, | iy Saink |

Mlm“ﬂg&“ by Pt il i TN MEAESIRIEN W SpL AN B ety od of ffererd wai e i ety Sl
[T P Matne woeiddid b paintings of

wne ki rakay dhan e
ceefiaing pebded uj
o ey Appear W b -
g i faet 0 com ol
LRI farh
“The so-callnd ‘ensbling
worky' fior e e has
increamel by DIESLODG w
L Le00s0 and bs slesdy
arvE] ke
T s vl & el st
00 hat s s Lichfekl
Clry b gevung, move OODEY
thirsen o e geveect that
han Beer 30 years 0 the
mhakthg whalel et
Tewn's ol wapres
it oty e ”
The Loades of LDGC Clr
Dl Fuallen bus chiabengsd
e Prman s EOTMIEES

T vy Shat iy
aren'l i Gl Morman 'y
permenel - W'
sty sl bt of frisitive
Trecitaack,” waid T Pul
(24

“Thaiehs e e

"Thisgs aiv moeing
i sy with S i
- wivark-tm bnprove-

i will sl i

i igns ferpiabey Febdwy il wmd the [Ral

Pl B, 08, B0, 00 iy L emine Masplas

u SiEe §, 10, b0 W, o ot i romatalinn
gs B, 1B, IF, B4 ettty

LS My

Thes Litvfmbed Aasd iy Camrdre, WWimed Bred Lo §wiley ik W05 01 BRE

rnaatrrjilan - e il 06

mandy o criticpas thas art'™
——

13 officemrchart

Lichfield Mercury, 2 January 2020

David Lock Associates
February 2020

Page | 10

Page 28



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan

Li

Consultation Report
chfield District Council

12 USOmLD MERCTEY  TiaURSOAY LNLILTY W 2000

Something for everyone
in spring season opener

RETTH DOMNELLY
Licfriiaid Gollerall
WITH & wied corees i fiam
weety him piaping sll grassd e
il mrtting mag fin the s of
gy Cattwral aml Fhil Cowd. sl
ey thousmli o | peopls
srprriade] a kil large et
singll, Kbl [eauely  openol
ichifiesd Afts Ynisg T s
UL Vi dot ML W

With & e char serged froem
bl ooy, W wenll-grahed
gL WM W i ey

ing mnl pasiciies mnd spoohs o
-
R e ity b ey e

Wty Tireii oeid @ bl dgrer
g @ ke mg el Plagioriam
e nesk slomsnm of w0 mssy
reftepy g, i dee chiond pr
prramics that wmiertihed Zwem sll

N T

wtsal b wsmrpTiing beoreows Brem
wwrrpihing el

Rmkels The Swonds of Shence
Teciming the Chililiess siaigs The
Tisuls ol Pusites, ahi o g
Ty, abmgunech Chos Fiders i the

Py b @ e vemsban of Johnny
Candt's (Thavt Bidkera i thar Sy
Pulltics, et fover ey D
Do Covinsly's minal, with jesss
wi fhe Abpon leing & présied
ennch s Conakd Tressy, whils
The Cirf ex Platform Thoes s
ancslr Linw wngg, S tme wih 1

He smcoved with & esie ol
pan! thast ials iy srenge by
i b oo Loomand Cahurr. lames:
s, Winrren Tl wid Daf

° You're all Stars, says grateful fundraising couple

A LIETUFTELD cossple buvs wrihe cory's Tescn Firs aare in b bstal ww rabiond LSBT, adware siith m Tty very per.
chaska d gencreass sl o Surmeny's Sar i b creditile, il ] Biar hivg sbories
wiier colbentinga thy bhebd ine Mummey's Sar suppons img the sheas periad of rime, ¥ emn'n thank Fveryone
whading ekl more than e, g thyeir Tl hes, whit v il i " B el Pl bt el vimgrn.
[E8. . afiecipd Iy renier it waa nely dhanbs wthe “Timally, | ssslas sl by 'y
A vty Wstin el B liraderihs  mummy ur wiihin 11 wl roepional groenaicy ol those Sar ha been mich @ mpport
uasvis cdrviied i ss Santa ad giving wimideriul projle visting il ol o consiand s of help,
i ol prageectively B The Pla i vl thos Mebirirury B s amdd Thet Plam Plod. plus o0 & big dhasl-pou b boes. Mum:
Phert, wnad s Tha bredibila waaytead s 1 ba s 1 0ina- tha venues’ sappor, thai we vy’ s e (hesnk - yos 0 sy
‘Hulk and Leanards from the lbeth romdd hedp fendrasee lor rreched the igure then we did.  one sbee, sapevially mry parmner
Tmmh i vy canse” “Praple woild come snd g

PUBLIC CONSULT

ATION RUNNING

UNTIL 3 FEBRUARY 2020

IELL

ITY CENTRE

W TEAIW AT

MASTERPLAN

1 e e Pt g i |

Lt hhaml® = apderpla

- -
3 % E‘H DAVID LOCK
dlltrll:cf councl] ASSOCIATES
Lichfield Mercury, 16 January 2020
David Lock Associates Page | 11

February 2020

Page 29



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

Appendix 1B Consultation flyer

==
o

PUBLIC CONSULTATION EVENT PUBLIC CONSULTATION EVENT
6 JANUARY TO 3 FEBRUARY 6 JANUARY TO 3 FEBRUARY

5 . Fridmy 17 Januian - .

J.d.T[‘.I!lfer.ﬂf s e LRt rar LHT{I{M-M

gisrict dopanil gistrict Joooncil

: BAVID LOCK Saturday 18 fanuary DAVID LOCH

e S o[ i, b T NS el ASSOCIATES rn - gt | L iciiild Lt ASEOCEATES

Have your say on the draft masterplan
Complete an online questionnaire:
www.pop-dla.com/lichfield
David Lock Associates Page | 12

February 2020

Page 30



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan

Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

Appendix 1C

FHE BATT WA TERR AN o0 ARPIRATIDNAL
WY DU & CLERN DIRGCTRON FOR THE FTeeE
SIVELDFMENT OF TRE COTV CEMERE, BUT 1
AU0 MERLENTRE, sANoNG BELARD 0 WHAT 3
ACHUVEBLE ERQ IWPORTESTLY, FELIVERANLL

THE DRAFT MASTERPLAN STRATEGY:
FOUR CORE PROPOSALS

L?gﬁtfiefﬂ

BALD LOCK
ASSOCIATES

Wl MASTESFLAN ORIEETIVES

Consultation leaflet

DELIVERY

WAITURPLAN GOARTIRE

1 MESTONPLAN DPPONTEWITY BALRS B PUTLIC
ALLL W FRORTIES

I e e R
e

MANTIRFLAR STSIEN FRRCIFLEY

e e
P——ptd .
e ——

e
— R

e
B L B EEE )
S A e ey

David Lock Associates
February 2020

Page 31

Page | 13



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan

Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

Appendix 1D

* B L &

o & s e g e

L‘Ffﬁ'tu

Lichfield City Centre Matterplan Suestionnaire

This b yins ppartunity ko comemenl oh D drofl L tifeid Dby Cesitss Uaaberphon
[~ e cheaft T opeen froen St formeaey bo B o Felanony
o

o

Start Ousstionnain

Lin bl Dottt Comirtnl sl ey o W ke ve s bl kel it i Do Pt T
Ack 0 R T g of infarrrvieg s Lichstaiel Ty Cantiow bl arplam,

Thon mbmrnndioes o . b byl i b sy Sl petion fnd s st e g by By b

Consultation questionnaire (online version)

O @ v ey e e

Development opportunities
& public realm priorities
have been identified to

help meet the six

Do you think the
overall strategy is correct?

O = e o o

Thamils yoni Bor parrplebieg the gueilionrsing.

¥ s S Sy T PR B G BT el

Sulbmit Arawsens

S S———

Page | 14

David Lock Associates
February 2020

Page 32



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

Appendix 1E Consultation questionnaire (paper version)
LiehField i
R HASTERPLAN APPRIIALCT
Lichfield City Centre Masterplan K Bevopemsat appmebimition And i rvate peberfies vy oo
Consultation Questionnaire i oy Hhih fhaal T e all iy b e
e Lo AT e rmigeuiml e’ plemis woplie miy |
Hhin by e ety b el o e e Lol Gy Dest e Seidinrlen
Naal b dpiate wis §iBliakd [Hotii ] § e i s el
lesss  previis gl comwsssln EAt IBe s s EEvEclive  qusEliersens
. jies i [T - ]
FLFLN - 7 ol bbbt Fp 1n i heiptel ie tiisk shesi the oy comirs be iseres ol (ee s ?
Ym O s O T e reporaied e pieaie fepien sy |
A REUIT ¥R
TR ST WS ST |
| Pimsus sster yuer pesboode = DWW RPN T OPPORTUMITIES
s haye haen 11 mmbsars o Fher rode mnd
H. D s N iy Ll ¥ Yam O L= Buraitien ol Fan by wfes bs e CHy Conire.
BE W e Thierk b Tl Bl ooy desnlkepm spgarisity =il
T v bkl Yim I L Balp ba wwprave the ity cenin?

L P TP e e o i foia |
I, D o oty ey e dtoliakd |01 Bmanl mrvn wwery ertighi |1
L U

Hh O T b eatrin Cos  meses” devebnpesnt meesEty wl Reip
e sy B ity comire?

vi. Wil in et ege reegel ~ yam BE I T o e e’ plts vl wéy |

e | gy = e o
L34 g il -0l s il =
TH- 6 gawrs il T e gears ekl =]
1944 gaarn a ' s e o

W] Vi e sk e Wil Slit Gt byl drasiopimr sppefusily sl beip b
Vemprry B iy cesie?

i wasl Anal?
Ll B ARERELL " AL - L L T ———

) D e D ¥ sl D Par idwniep ks iy [reey I R T | rp—p—— ruie valer
ot 1 b Wi 1y vevrRE ) m,_::.__" owicnd gy
L. ] e e - Ra D e il ' e wap

H1 Mim s sy sl 1vebepetinen Ot that st s T N —
--‘-_ - i wen fharn Bl lor Pl st
- o W DT e e o e saga vy | g PR S Y LR
O PUBLEC BEALM PRICRITIES L1] Do s Uik Hes pesimstn s e lemiy simsss” imbmrvmmsdiens wvill kprews:
i e FRr—— - i m————
it P A p— e @ N e

W] D e Tk L harn Fosd | seriste il pmprea
strmeslslity L e ity comtrn frees | iflald Dy free shatisn !

aen P | I T L pep————
T Ly T S Oy S ST S ——
Emhases pedsrian soes gnd salerg
P O R T T e —————
David Lock Associates Page | 15

February 2020

Page 33



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

T R L T Ry M ——
Pavigale Viesr vy armd (he Gy e
L We D (T o cviondnd e Cimde ampie by |

131 B Ui iy wl— ik Bl P eres Mt il e bl

e = T e empOndied v’ paas BRpkR why )

[ MASTIERPLAN ELIVERY

U] s s ik Thes Cosbivary STrabogy ekl & sl mey armard b
berpsbrrmn v Ve ms e prias

e L I e SR T AR RAES ey

LF] e et B sy burtiser meenia?

Thank you for taking the time to
complete this quastionnaire

David Lock Associates Page | 16
February 2020

Page 34



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

Appendix 1F Public consultation boards

David Lock Associates Page | 17
February 2020

Page 35



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

Appendix 2 Draft Masterplan Consultation — Summary of responses
received

David Lock Associates Page | 18
February 2020

Page 36



Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation Report
Lichfield District Council

David Lock Associates Page | 19
February 2020

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



6 abed

DAVID

LOCK

/)\ ASSOCIATES

Appendix 2: Draft Masterplan Consultation - Summary of responses received

Draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation

Project
The Masterplan Approach

Comment

Suggested Masterplan Change

Overall Strategy

raised in relation to specific development opportunities.

77% of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 1 ‘Do you think that the overall strategy is correct?’

There is strong support for the weight given towards sustaining and enhancing the significance of the historic environment and
heritage assets. The majority of respondents agreed that the Masterplan approach is appropriate, although some concerns were

More focus on sustainability as a guiding principle for the
Masterplan. Lichfield should be proactive in working towards
carbon neutrality.

Addressed in Draft Masterplan (Objective 6).

The cumulative scale of future development proposals appears to
be out of character with the realistic capacity of the historic
environment; scale of development proposed has the potential to
lead to over-intensive and inappropriate forms.

Comment noted. The proposed mix of uses has been
developed having regard to the complementary uses which
would support a “Speciality” centre and in ensuring proposals
in the masterplan are both achievable and deliverable.

Quarters

73% of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 2 ‘Is it helpful to think about the city centre in terms of quarters?’

Development Op

portunities

1. Birmingham
Road Gateway

help to improve the city centre?’

789%o0 of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 3 ‘Do you think the 'Birmingham Road Gateway’ development opportunity will

The respondents who provided additional commentary in response to this development opportunity were generally very positive
about the proposed mix of uses and consider the proposal to be an improvement on the former Friarsgate scheme.

There is a need for affordable housing in Lichfield.

Addressed in Draft Masterplan:

‘focus on providing affordable homes to meet identified local
need’ (Paragraph 3.5).

Pressure on local GPs due to increased residential properties.

Comment noted.

The provision for car parking is inadequate to accommodate
existing demand and proposed new activities (e.g. cinema).

Questioned whether car parking could be reduced / relocated to
the periphery of the City, instead of a new MSCP?

Analysis of existing parking data informed the city-wide
strategy for parking provision and is considered appropriate
for the City Centre’s needs, whilst seeking to also promote
more sustainable forms of travel and less reliance on car
usage.

Suggestion that the new multi-storey car park should offer 10-
minutes free parking, to allow for pick-up/drop-off at the Bus
Station and Train Station.

Suggested additional text under ‘Parking and servicing’;

Future car park pricing strategy and associated management
to be considered by LDC.




ot abed

a\ DAVID LOCK

ASSOCIATES

Consideration should be given to creating a public open space at
the junction of St John Street and Birmingham Road to enhance
the approach from Lichfield City Railway Station and the setting
and appreciation of the Listed Hospital of St John and the District
Council House.

Comment noted. However, the provision of an area of open
space adjacent to the junction of St John Street and
Birmingham Road is not considered to provide an appropriate
or attractive location for residents/ visitors to use. Areas of
public open space are provided for elsewhere across the city.

The inter-relationship between any new restaurants and the
Transport Hub will need to be carefully designed to provide an
attractive outlook.

Suggested additional text under ‘Key Design & Development
Considerations’;
Development will be designed to manage the interface

between the proposed restaurant/cafe offer and the adjacent
bus station.

Would like details on size of any proposed hotel.

The detailed design of any such new hotel would be driven by
operator demand and be subject to a planning application.

Support limiting St John street development to 2 storey.
Elsewhere the proposed 4 storey development is considered too
high. Issues with vehicular access to site need addressing. A new
MSCP is welcomed but need to time it correctly to prevent a
shortfall in car parking. Proposed pedestrian route should be
closer to the Garrick.

The Delivery Strategy proposes an indicative phasing
approach, to bring forward replacement car parking spaces in
advance of any car parking being displaced from development
opportunity sites.

2. District
Council House

729 of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 4 ‘Do you think the 'District Council House’ development opportunity will help to

improve the city centre?’

The respondents who provided additional commentary in response to this development opportunity considered that this would

help utilise the Council offices more efficiently.

Concerns about offering a competing arts and wedding venue to
The Guildhall and Lichfield Registry Office, having a potentially
detrimental impact on these existing facilities.

Suggested amendment;

‘The Council Chamber and adjacent buildings could be
converted subject to appropriate consents to provide a self-

contained wedding/occasion venue for hire, with the

attractive courtyard garden providing outdoor and breakout
space’ (paragraph 3.17)

Applicable to all references to ‘wedding/occasion venue’

Also need parking for functions if converting the council chamber
for events.

Parking should be available for public use outside office hours.

Suggested amendment;

‘In the evening and at weekends when the wedding/occasion
venue is in use, use of visitors—could-utilise the District
Council House car park for visitors could be maintained,
where practicable. (Key Design & Development
Considerations).




Tt abed

a\ DAVID LOCK

ASSOCIATES

Separation of the former Headmaster's House from the third
Grammar School building is highly undesirable and both should
continue to be in the same ownership.

Comment noted.

If sections of the Council House are to be vacated by the District
Council, office use, or similar, seem most appropriate. Express
doubts as to whether the city requires more meeting or internal
venue space.

Comment noted.

3. Bird Street
Courtyard

759%0 of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 5 ‘Do you think the 'Bird Street Courtyard’ development opportunity will help to

improve the city centre?’

The principle of development on Bird Street Courtyard is contentious. While some respondents opposed any development, others
were open to development in principle, where the design of buildings was sensitive to heritage assets.

Support the retention of some parking on the site but believe
consideration should be given to those travelling from the north
who need parking.

Support in principle the redevelopment of Bird St car park.

Support noted.

Consider that the Master Plan could be much more radical by
redeveloping both the B&M site and the car park site.

Suggests that B&M store is demolished in order to open up the
view from Market Street to Minster Pool and the Cathedral
beyond, with a new public space provided.

Comment noted - for discussion with LDC.

Suggested amendment to emphasise (a) environmental
enhancements in the short-term; with (b) a longer-term
opportunity for comprehensive development.

The Masterplan should mention National Cycle Network (NCN)
Cycle Route 54, which is currently routed through Bird Street Car
Park and dangerous for cyclists.

Suggested additional text under ‘development aspirations’;

Improvements to strategic cycle network through Bird Street
Courtyard along the Sustrans route, to include new surface
treatment to provide a clearer and safer route.

Consider that Bird Street car park is ripe for some form of
development.

Considers that the current proposal would not maintain views and
feels uninspired.

Express concern about the proposed loss of some car parking
spaces and request adequate parking is maintained for those
visiting the Cathedral (not necessarily in Bird Street car park).

Consider that the removal of the majority of parking spaces will
negatively impact the businesses in the centre.

Comment noted.

Displaced parking is re-provided elsewhere in the City Centre.
Comment noted, although the city centre benefits from being
compact in form. The re-provision of parking spaces
elsewhere in the city centre is considered an appropriate
approach.




2 obed

DAVID LOCK
ASSOCIATES

Three storeys are too high for the area overlooking Minster Pool
and to the Cathedral.

Suggested additional text under ‘Issues and Obstacles’ (page
65);

It should be noted that the viability appraisals were
undertaken assuming a three-storey development to allow 2
floors of residential above ground level. It is appreciated that
achieving 3 storeys on this site may be challenging due to the
sensitivity of the setting. A cross check viability assessment
reducing the development to 2 storeys indicates that a
reduced height scheme on the same footprint would be
marginally unviable. If 3 storeys are deemed unacceptable,
reviewing the design or including further landownerships may
therefore be necessary to improve the viability position.

The Bird street car park is the most useful car park in Lichfield as
it is close to the shops. The car park provides easy access to the
Cathedral. The views of the Minster Pool and Cathedral are a
stunning welcome to visitors. Building beside the Minster will ruin
the enjoyment of this stunning walkway.

Comment noted - see above

Reduced parking at the Bird Street car park gives considerably
less parking for North Lichfield residents and for visitors to the
cathedral.

Comment noted.

It is likely that by having a maximum of 3 storeys in height, that
this might set a precedent for all new development in this area,
which could have a negative impact on the diversity of the
skyline.

Suggested amendment under ‘storey heights’;

Proposals should have regard to the prevailing height of
development in the locality with particular regard to vistas to
and from the Grade I listed Cathedral. Heights to be
established through detailed design work, whilst maintaining
vistas of the Cathedral spires. Up-to-three-storey-development
- - —i= . -

s _eensl de_ ed 3PPFop allte subject-to-vistas—ofthe-Cathearal

Parking here should be for Blue Badge Holders - this could
remove the need for any Blue Badge holders’ cars to access any
of Market Street, Bore Street etc.

Suggested amendment;

‘Up to 55 retained car parking spaces, the majority of which
will be prioritised for Blue Badge holders;’ (paragraph 3.26)

Consult with Historic England and Staffordshire County Council’s
Historic Environment Team.

Suggested amendment;

Historic England and Staffordshire County Council’s Historic
Environment Team (new bullet point to paragraph 3.27)




¢ obed

a\ DAVID LOCK

ASSOCIATES

Adjacent land within LDC and SCC control should be identified on
the plan.

Suggested amendment to plan to reflect comments.

Bird Street Car Park Development Brief (2010) should be
referenced.

Suggested cross-reference to be made to the 2010
Development Brief.

The Masterplan should make reference to the historic character
and morphology of the site. An attempt should be made to reflect
historic property boundaries. New development shouldn’t abut
Minster Pool Walk.

The Analysis, Issues and Options Report provides a high-level
analysis of the historic character and morphology of Lichfield.
Any development proposal would be subject to a planning
application which would include a historic environment
assessment.

Pedestrian access improvements should be high priority. There
should be increased public realm space adjoining Minster Pool
Walk.

Comments noted.

The desire to use this space for development has been on the
District Council’s hit list for many years for financial gain, showing
little regard for the wishes of residents. Car park loss will directly
impact on residents of Beacon Street.

Comments noted. This development opportunity seeks to
provide a balanced response to the wide-ranging views on the
future use of this site.

4. University
West Car Park

679%o0 of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 6 ‘Do you think the 'University West Car Park’ development opportunity will help

to improve the city centre?’

The proposed area of coach parking is generally considered important by the majority of respondents. However, some respondents
consider that either the existing car park should be retained, or it should revert back to open space.

Does not support this proposal as a former area of open space.

Comment noted.

Do not consider that the definition of this area as the Business &
Learning Quarter is appropriate as it is primarily residential.

Two or three storey development on the car park would block
line-of-sight visibility to the Conduit Clock tower on the Bowling
Green roundabout from the Bishops Lodge apartments.

Loss of significant capacity in the car park would cause difficulties
to visitors of residents at the Bishops Lodge apartments.

Comment noted.

Some parking will be retained. Displaced spaces will be re-
provided a short walk away.

Questioned whether this development opportunity could provide
additional educational space, to allow the Cathedral School to
expand within Lichfield.

Suggested amendment under ‘potential development
capacity’ to provide flexibility towards either educational uses
or commercial business space (complementary to the
Business & Learning Quarter).




71 abed

a\ DAVID LOCK

ASSOCIATES

Other
Development
Opportunities

Consider that the proposed development at Angel Croft would
support and strengthen the Cathedral Quarter.

Comments noted. The proposed development at Angel Croft
falls within the ‘transition area’ of City Centre West, as set
out in the masterplan.

The area between Dam Street and Cross Keys (centred on
Quonians Lane), although within a Conservation Area, could be
considered.

Comment noted.

A multi-purpose covered outside space to encourage market
traders of customers of all ages.

Comment noted.

Potential commercial development on Stowe Road, adjacent
Bromford office. Possible residential development on Swan
Road/Friary and Sandford Street car parks.

Comment noted.

Public Realm Priorities

A. Birmingham
Road Corridor

889%0 of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 8 ‘Do you think the '‘Birmingham Road Corridor’ interventions will improve
pedestrian accessibility to the city centre from Lichfield City train station?’.

Improvements to the public realm, especially the provision of safer access routes from Lichfield City Station, are strongly supported

by the vast majority of respondents.

This is supported as a very high priority, and needs early delivery
in conjunction with the first phases of the Birmingham Road
Gateway.

Support noted.

Suggest an underpass/overpass to facilitate pedestrian access
that does not depend on stopping car traffic.

Comment noted.

Widening the road to accommodate a central filter lane for right-
turning traffic should be considered to reduce the amount of
queuing traffic.

Comment noted.

Synchronisation of traffic lights at the new junction with those at
the junction of Birmingham Road and St John Street would
improve traffic flows. Further synchronisation of the lights with
those at the Greenhill/Rotten Row junction and the pedestrian
crossing at the exit from the Three Spires Shopping Centre would
also help improve flows.

Comment noted.

The Birmingham Road/St John St junction needs to be made
safer. Another traffic light junction will make transiting
Birmingham Road from either direction unacceptable.

Potential new pedestrian crossing points are proposed as part
of this junction.




G abed

a\ DAVID LOCK

ASSOCIATES

B. Lichfield
Transport Hub

839%o of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 9 ‘Do you think the 'Lichfield Transport Hub’ will enhance the arrival experience
to the city by bus, coach, train and taxi?’.

The vast majority of respondents strongly support provision of a new bus station, as it would provide a more welcoming gateway
to the City Centre.

There should be an enclosed waiting area within the bus station | Comment noted - this is subject to the detailed design.
to enhance the arrival experience for bus passengers.

The bus station should be of an adequate size to accommodate | Comment noted. The size of the bus station has been
future expansion including for coach parking if necessary. informed by discussions with the County Council and bus
operators. Coach drop off/ pick-up bays are provided for as
part of the Lichfield Transport Hub.

Note that some bus operators do not favour station layouts that | Comment noted.
require buses to reverse.

C. Bird Street
Walk

809%o of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 10 ‘Do you think the 'Bird Street Walk’ interventions will make this route safer
and more welcoming?’.

Although the majority of respondents provide support for this public realm priority, the existing width of Bird Street Walk is
considered too restrictive to permit the potential for any real improvements.

Consider that the B&M store should be demolished to improve | Comment noted - see above
what is currently a very dingy alley.

D. Circular
Minster Pool
Walk

819 of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 11 ‘Do you think a 'Circular Minster Pool Walk’” will encourage more people to
use the Minster Pool area?’.

There is some opposition to this proposal, with several respondents concerned about the potential impact on Minster Pool,
biodiversity, trees and the tranquillity of the Remembrance Garden.

Supports the proposal but is mindful of potential difficulties in | Support noted.
achieving it, not least in relation to land ownership. Careful
planning will be required in regard to seating and signage.

The proposal is supported and will offer improved circulation | Support noted.
opportunities. It is not considered that this proposed northern
section requires to provide a cycleway facility.




ot abed

a\ DAVID LOCK

ASSOCIATES

A cycle route to the north of Minster Pool linking to Beacon Park
could really improve bicycle connectivity as part of a National
Cycle Network route.

The proposal would be an ideal solution, if the section on the
north side of the pool were to be a shared cycle/pedestrian path
with adequate 'Share with Care' notices to protect pedestrians.

Constructing a path will disturb the biodiversity of the north side
of the pool. Trees will have to be chopped down & late-night
revellers will cause a nuisance to residents.

The route would need access through the Garden of
Remembrance, which is a Grade II* listed structure and, and the
gardens of a number of listed buildings, which should remain a
quiet reflective space.

Comment noted. Any new path would seek to avoid any
adverse impacts upon existing biodiversity and landscaping.
Any changes proposed would be subject to detailed design
and assessment.

Suggested amendments to ‘Key Improvements;

e The route to the north of Minster Pool is proposed as
a footpath-only route to retain the tranquillity of this
area. Improvements to the existing strategic cycle
network through Bird Street Courtyard are proposed,
to include new surface treatment to provide a clearer
and safer route.

E. Pedestrian
Priority Streets

77% of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 12 ‘Do you think the 'pedestrian priority streets’ interventions will improve

pedestrian safety?’.

This public realm priority is welcomed by most respondents, in providing a positive impact on residents, visitors and th

environment.

Opening up Bore Street to direct traffic would be extremely
undesirable and likely to encourage more unauthorised traffic
from Tamworth Street to Bore Street. This is counterproductive
to providing a safe pedestrian area. The bottom end of Bore
Street junction should be re-designed.

Comment noted.

Re-opening of Lower Bore Street to vehicles, closing of
Conduit/Market/Breadmarket Street requires careful and
sensitive consideration due to impact on local businesses.

Comment noted. Any such change to the street network
would be subject to future discussions between LDC/SCC and
local residents and businesses, as appropriate.

Pedestrian priority streets need better enforcement.

Comment noted.

Pedestrian priority streets should not exclude cyclists.

Comment noted.

Need to consider light/noise pollution.

Comments noted.

The city centre should be pedestrianised, blue badge holders can
be relocated into nearby car parks and servicing of premises could
be subject to an hours restriction. Bollards could be installed on
the entrance to the city centre on Tamworth Street.

The masterplan seeks to maintain and enhance access for all
users, regardless of their mobility needs.




Jv 9bed

a\ DAVID LOCK

ASSOCIATES

Removing cars or more severely restricting vehicular access
around Market Square would present a much better city centre
environment.

Comments noted.

F. Pedestrian
Walkways &
Linkages

919 of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 13 ‘Do you think the improvements to ‘pedestrian walkways and linkages” will

enhance pedestrian access and safety?’.

Most respondents agreed with this public realm priority, although many considered there should also be an emphasis on improving

(and maintaining) existing infrastructure.

There is too much emphasis on walking and cycling for a city with
high levels of retired and elderly people.

Comment noted.

Pedestrian pathways from the proposed Angel Croft scheme
should be retained.

Comment noted.

Noise and light pollution must be considered.

Suggested additional text under Objective 5;

‘The masterplan identifies public realm improvements to
enhance connectivity between the Birmingham Road Gateway
and the city centre, both visually and physically. These
improvements must be sensitive to existing residents with
respect to noise and light pollution. (Paragraph 2.46)

Proposed Angel Croft development will provide an excellent
walkway from the Cathedral Quarter to Beacon Park.

Comments noted.

G. Signage and

9396 of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 13 ‘Do you think the improvements to ‘pedestrian walkways and linkages’ will

Wayfinding enhance pedestrian access and safety?’ and is strongly supported.
Large city maps with key attractions could be included, along with | Comment noted.
distances to such attractions.
There could be reference to potential heritage improvements such | Comments noted. To be considered as part of future signage
as shop front improvements, heritage tourism signage, revival of | and wayfinding strategy (Public Realm Priority G).
heritage features in the public realm, walkways and cycleways
that appropriately connect heritage assets and better reveal their
significance.
A review of all street furniture and installations should take place. | The masterplan promotes a co-ordinated approach to signage
and street furniture.
Other Public Park & Ride should be considered to keep cars out of the city | Comment noted. A Park and Ride is not considered

Realm Priorities

centre.

appropriate to the scale and function of Lichfield.




81 abed

LOCK

a\ DAVID
ASSOCIATES

More ‘radical’ approach to encouraging more sustainable forms of
transport should be considered. More consideration should be
given to cyclists, including the potential for cycling to the city
centre from the east or west, via Dam Street and a traffic-free
Bird Street Courtyard.

The Masterplan should mention National Cycle Network (NCN)
Cycle Route 54, which is currently routed through Bird Street Car
Park and dangerous for cyclists.

Improve access to the city centre through segregated cycle paths
or ‘share with care’. Improved cycling facilities throughout the
city centre to include priority boxes at junctions, and where
possible, 3metre shared cycle and pedestrian routes. More cycle
stands should be provided.

Addressed in draft masterplan, under Design Principle Four
(Designing for Health) and under ‘moving around the city
centre’.

A new cycle hub is proposed at the station.
Suggested amendments to text;

e Reference to Sustrans National Cycle Route 54 being
integrated within Bird Street Courtyard with onward
cycle connectivity provided as part of the Circular
Minster Pool Walk.

e Reference to new cycle parking facilities across the
city centre at key locations, including at Bird Street
Courtyard.

There is no reference to heritage assets within the public realm
improvements section as the potential impact on the Grade II*
structure in the Garden of Remembrance and how it is unlikely to
be compatible with a new cycleway.

Suggested additional paragraph following paragraph 4.12;

4.13 Regard must be had to the setting of the surrounding
Listed buildings, including the Grade II* Listed War Memorial
in the Garden of Remembrance.

Delivering the Masterplan

Delivery Strategy

8295 of respondents answered ‘yes’ to Question 16 ‘Do you think the Delivery Strategy provides a sensible way forward for

implementing the masterplan?’.

The delivery strategy is generally supported by the majority of respondents, although a number of respondents consider that

Birmingham Road Gateway should be a delivery priority.

Birmingham Road Gateway, and specifically the proposed multi-
storey car park and bus station, need to be prioritised.

Development should be phased to ensure replacement car
parking spaces are available.

Correct errors on page 63;
Under phasing for Birmingham Road Gateway;

. P One: Residential I

10



61 abed

DAVID LOCK
ASSOCIATES

e Phase One: Residential apartments and small-scale
business units (western section of site).

¢ Phase Two: Re-provision of MSCP, along with some
leisure and restaurant uses.

e Phase Three: Leisure scheme comprising hotel,
cinema and restaurants, along with residential houses
and apartments. (central section of site).

e Phase Four: Re-provision of existing Bus Station

Under phasing for District Council House;

‘b‘H‘S‘Hq'e-S'S- _H'n‘l'ts- —éWe-s-tan—seet'-en‘ —e‘ﬁ—s"te)—- 0

E 3 MWLMSGP—%W isi 7 I
leisure-andrestaurant uses-

. P} I L isina | ,

The commercial ‘profitable’ elements should be progressed in
parallel with the public realm improvements.

Comment noted - this is the assumption set out under
Timescales in Section 5 of the draft masterplan.

More detailed delivery strategy for the public transport/southern
gateway could be provided.

Comment noted. However, it is considered premature at this
stage to provide further detail than included.

We have concerns with the tables produces from page 62 and
both the description of development proposed and the limited
reference to heritage.

Comment noted - heritage is considered as part of the overall
masterplan proposals.

Negotiations will need to take place with Network Rail in relation
to development adjacent to Lichfield City Railway Station.

Suggested additional text;

Negotiations required with Network Rail, regarding any new
development adjacent to Lichfield city Railway Station.

Concern that the Birmingham Road Gateway will be 5-7 years
away, this site is the number one priority for the city.

Comments noted. Delivery will be subject to the
determination of the planning application and the selected
delivery route.

Deliverability only considered for commercial elements with a
vague reference to delivery of public sector infrastructure; this
(public funding) would seem highly unlikely and we would expect
contributions from developers to be sought.

The Delivery Strategy identifies potential funding
opportunities for both the Development Opportunities and the
Public Realm Priorities.

11




0S abed

a\ DAVID LOCK

ASSOCIATES

We can see no difference in the viability status of the Birmingham
Road proposal over Friarsgate.

The former Friarsgate scheme was a retail-led proposal which
is not a financially viable proposition for a city centre in the
current retail market. The Masterplan proposes a broad mix
of uses appropriate to Lichfield and which is based on local
market evidence of the uses which would be capable of
delivery.

Other Comments

Other Comments

Improvements to Lichfield City train station should be considered
- café, toilets etc.

New facilities proposed as part of new Transport Hub.

Connectivity between Lichfield City and Lichfield Trent Valley
stations (including signage) needs to be addressed. Increased car
parking at Lichfield Trent Valley station and shuttle bus service
between Lichfield Trent Valley and Lichfield City to reduce the
number of car trips.

Comment noted.

There will be fewer parking spaces overall.

Comment noted. Addressed in main section above.

There should be more reference to the Cathedral’s contribution
to the City. There is some contradiction in the emphasis on
protecting views to the Cathedral, and then proposing a three-
storey building on Bird Street Car Park. None of the proposed
developments will bring Lichfield to national or international
attention or encourage longer dwell times or overnight stays.

Comment noted.

Development height at Bird Street Courtyard addressed in
main section above.

The proposed mix of uses is intended to encourage longer
stays. The masterplan recommends that a wider Marketing
Strategy should be developed to provide visitor information
not only within Lichfield through new signage, but also in
raising Lichfield’s profile through marketing and social media
to encourage people to visit.

There should be more support of the tourism economy. The
profile of the City needs to be raised, but there is no proposed
development or use that will bring Lichfield into regional, national
or international attention, or encourage longer dwell time or
overnight stays.

Addressed in draft masterplan as part of Public Realm Priority
G (Signage and Wayfinding); in the suggested development
of a wider marketing strategy for the city.

The re-provision of a leisure facility should be considered in the
city centre.

Comment noted. However, alternative suitable sites are being
considered by LDC beyond the city centre (addressed at
paragraph 2.9 of draft masterplan).

A separate car parking schedule would be beneficial. The use of
VMS electronic car park signage should be investigated.

Comment noted.

12



TG oabed

DAVID LOCK
ASSOCIATES

Lichfield City Council should be added to the list of consultees on
Birmingham Road Gateway.

The Trustees of St John’s Hospital would welcome being
included in any stakeholder discussions/events concerning the
Birmingham Road Gateway and the Birmingham Road Corridor.

Suggested amendment to ‘issues and obstacles’ to include
negotiations with Lichfield City Council and the trustees of St
John’s Hospital.

Where appropriate, Historic England would be keen to be a
stakeholder at the appropriate time.

Comment noted. Historic England will be a statutory
consultee to any future planning application affecting heritage
assets.

Infill development and redevelopment on brownfield sites will
not always be appropriate (paragraphs 2.81.2.83).

Suggested amendment;

‘Select infill and redevelopment opportunities on brownfield
sites designed to overlook the park and establish an
attractive edge where this would not harm the significance of
heritage assets’. (paragraphs 2.81 and 2.82)

Replace ‘preserved’ with ‘protected’ and do not reference listed
buildings as separate to heritage assets (simply use heritage
assets).

Suggested amendment;

Replace ‘preserved-with ‘protected’ in paragraphs 2.61 &
2.85.

Replace Yisted-buildings”with ‘heritage assets’ in paragraphs
2.4, 2.31, 2.85 and 3.29 and on pages 63, 65 and 67.

Reference the other spires of St Mary’s and St Michael’s
churches in paragraph 2.5.

Suggested amendment to reference the spires of St Mary’s
and St Michael’s Churches.

Biodiversity net gain and climate change should be referenced.

Suggested amendment to reference biodiversity net gain
under Objective 6 (The Green and Sustainable City).

Include road names on Masterplan map.

Suggested addition of road names on Masterplan Quarters
plan.

No funding is currently identified in the SCC capital programme
for investment in the Birmingham Road corridor including
improvements for sustainable transport.

Suggested amendment;

e Transport funding from Staffordshire County Council -
As Highway Authority, Staffordshire County Council
will-could play a key role via their involvement in the
development of the Birmingham Road Corridor and
Transport Hub in addition to their support for
sustainable travel schemes including pedestrian and
cycling initiatives; (paragraph 5.23)

13




ZS abed

DAVID LOCK
ASSOCIATES

A clear challenge is the issue of climate change.

Comments noted. Masterplan Objective 6 (The Green &

Sustainable City) seeks to promote climate change resilience.

Need for EV Charging points, need for VMS signage, need for a
shop signage policy and need for public art to be included in
Masterplan.

Provision of EV charging points is to be considered as part of
the planning application process, consistent with District and
County Council policy requirements at that time.

The masterplan identifies the potential use of public art.

14



Agenda Item 6

Local Plan Review Update

Report of the Cabinet Member for Investment, Economic Growth & Tourism i__'} CI"/ @[A

Councillor 1. Eadie district N council

Date: 11 March 2020 www.lichfielddc.gov.uk

Contact Craig Jordan/Stephen Stray

Officer:

Tel Number: 01543 308202/308147 Economic Growth,

Email: craig.jordan@lichfielddc.gov.uk/stephen.stray@lichfielddc.gov.uk  Environment and
Development

Local Ward All Members

Overview and
Members (

Scrutiny) Committee

1. Executive Summary

1.1 The consultation on the Local Plan Review Preferred Options closed on the 24t January 2020.

1.2 Representations were received from approximately 460 individuals or organisations with a further 685
individual members of the public submitting a standard response regarding proposals for Burntwood.
The consultation responses are currently being processed.

1.3 Whilst a range of supporting evidence has now been completed, further evidence is still required to
support the publication (regulation 19) version.

1.4 The Local Plan evidence base completed to date is being reviewed internally with additional ‘critical
friend’ support provided externally by a Barrister and Planning Consultancy.

1.5 The next version of the Local Plan will be the publication (regulation 19) version. At this formal stage,
the document should be the Council’s final position on the document with limited scope for further
alteration.

1.6 It is proposed to amend the current Local Development Scheme programme so that the publication
version consultation date changes from May 2020 to July 2020. This will allow sufficient time for the
processing of representations to be completed and for the further work to support the evidence base
to inform the publication version of the Local Plan. There is sufficient time within the LDS programme
for this alteration without change to the timing of the subsequent steps including the submission date
of January 2021. Members will recall that there is a commitment in the adopted Lichfield District Local
Plan Allocations to submit a review of the Local Plan by no later than the end of December 2021.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Committee notes the progress and next steps associated with the Local Plan Review.

2.2 That the Committee recommends that Cabinet approves the revised Local Development Scheme
timetable set out in paragraph 3.9 of this report.

3. Background

Local Plan Review

Page 53



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Members will be aware that the Council published the Local Plan Review — Preferred Options for
consultation from the 29t November 2019 for 8 weeks until the 24t January 2020. The Preferred
Options version provided additional detail based on fresh evidence and responses received to the
previous consultation of the Preferred Options & Policy Directions version held between January and
March of 2019. It proposes changing the plan period to 2040 to align better with evidence base time
periods. It also includes a revised approach to delivering a potentially achievable level of growth of
approximately 11,780 new homes including a shortfall of 4500 contribution towards the Greater
Birmingham and Black Country housing Market Area and an additional buffer of housing sites of
around 20% — 25 %. It seeks to accommodate this growth whilst causing minimal impact on the
Greenbelt. It therefore proposes changes when compared to the previous version of the emerging
local plan in respect of how growth could be distributed across the district and its settlements. Most
particularly, instead of proposing a distribution pattern allocating sites broadly in line with the
settlement hierarchy, it seeks to allocate a significant proportion of the growth through the release of
land for development via:

e Growth north of Lichfield City

e Growth of the sustainable villages of Fradley, Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill and Whittington

e Sustainable growth of Burntwood

e Marginal growth of the rural settlements

The plan acknowledges the level of employment need required but recognises that further work is still
required at this stage to identify all the possible options for meeting this need. It furthermore,
introduces the concept of a new settlement, the location of which would be determined in a future
plan review period. The plan whilst seeking to minimise impact on the Green Belt also proposes some
changes to it in order to accommodate the level of growth proposed and identifies areas of
safeguarded land in which land is removed from the Green Belt for future plan review periods.

The responses to the latest consultation are now being processed. Representations were received from
approximately 460 individuals / organisations. A further 685 individual members of the public
submitted the same response which had been prepared and circulated by the Burntwood Action Group
(BAG). The main themes being identified at the time of writing in respect of the responses reviewed to
date are outlined in the bullet points below.

Concern over the proposed allocations and the delivery of associated infrastructure requirements.
The sustainability of the revised strategy

Loss of Greenbelt and identification of safeguarded land

The consultation process

The level of additional housing that can be accommodated in Lichfield District to contribute towards
meeting the identified Birmingham and the Black Country’s unmet housing need.

To allocate sites not identified in the Preferred Options version November 2019

A more comprehensive summary of the key issues identified to date are outlined at Appendix A. This
table will be added to when all of the representation responses have been processed. Following the
finalisation of the inputting and careful review of all of the responses received, the full list of responses
and comments along with a completed list of key issues will be reported back to this committee.

Evidence base

3.5

Whilst a significant amount of evidence has been gathered and completed to date and was published
in support of the Preferred Options version of the Local Plan review, a significant amount of further
evidence is still required, including evidence that is being prepared in partnership with other
authorities where appropriate. It is anticipated that the areas of evidence outlined below will become

Page 54



3.6

available to inform the emerging Local Plan during the April to June of 2020. The areas of evidence
include:

Infrastructure evidence including transport modelling and updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan
Cannock Chase Special Area of Conservation (SAC)

Viability Evidence

Staffordshire Low Carbon Study

Stage 2 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA)

Open Space and Green Infrastructure Study

Renewable Energy

In addition to the above areas of evidence required, it is considered prudent to critically review the
evidence completed to date. This review is being undertaken internally, but also with additional
‘critical friend’ assistance from a Planning Barrister and in respect of the Green Belt Review a planning
consultancy. Where possible, it will also be appropriate to update the completed evidence to support
the publication (regulation 19 version) so that it is based on the most up to position.

Local Development Scheme

3.7

3.8

It is important that continued progress is made on the plan because there is a commitment in the
adopted Lichfield District Local Plan Allocations to submit the Lichfield District Local Plan Review by no
later than the end of December 2021. However, notwithstanding the need to progress, the Council will
need to satisfy itself that upon submission of the plan, it is deemed to be ‘sound’ and legally compliant.
The next version of the Local Plan will be the publication (regulation 19) version. At this formal stage,
the document should be the Council’s final position on the document with limited scope for further
alteration before submission.

The current Local Development Scheme proposes the publication (regulation 19) version for
consultation in May 2020 and for submission to the Secretary of State in January 2021. It is proposed
to now amend the current Local Development Scheme programme so that the publication version
consultation date changes from May 2020 to July 2020. This will allow sufficient time for the processing
of representations to be completed and for the further work to support the evidence base to inform
the publication version of the Local Plan. It is considered there is sufficient time within the LDS
programme based on the information currently available to officers for this alteration to be done
without change to the timing of the subsequent steps including the submission date of January 2021.

Next steps

3.9

It is proposed to amend the timetable in the Local Development Scheme in order for the publication
(regulation 19) version to be published in July instead of May for the reasons outlined in this report.
Accordingly, it is anticipated that a further report will be prepared for EGED Overview & Scrutiny in
June 2020 that will prepare the way for the publication (regulation 19) version to be considered by
Cabinet and then published in July 2020. It will be informed by careful review and response to the
representations received to the Preferred Options consultation which closed on the 24t January 2020
and the additional evidence gathered. The full response to all of the representations received and all of
the evidence subsequently gathered will be reported back to this committee in June 2020.

Alternative Options 1. Lichfield District could seek to publish the publication version of the plan in

accordance with the Local Development Scheme timetable, however, there is
insufficient time for the plan to be supported by consideration of the

Page 55



representations received or for a comprehensive evidence base to be
gathered to support the publication version at this stage.

Consultation 1. Consultation has been undertaken on the previous stages of the Local Plan
Review. The Preferred Options document consultation has now closed and
responses are being inputted and reviewed.

2. Consultation will be required on future stages of the Local Plan

Financial 1. Officer time will be needed to undertake future consultations on the Local

Implications Plan Review.

2. The costs of consultation will be met within approved budgets.

3. A budget has been established to support the Local Plan Review evidence
base.

Contribution to the 1. Supports the priority of a vibrant and prosperous economy by identifying

Delivery of the needs and opportunities for investment

Strategic Plan 2. Supports the priority of Healthy and Safe communities by ensuring the
provision of housing.

3. Supports the priority of clean, green and welcoming places to live by assisting
in allocating land for affordable housing, as well as supporting the delivery of
residential and commercial developments.

Equality, Diversity 1. An Equality Impact Assessment accompanies the Local Plan Review
and Human Rights document. This will require ongoing update.
Implications

Crime & Safety 1. None.

Issues

Environmental 1. The Council is required to assess the environmental impacts of any plan which

Impact it produces. Accordingly a Sustainability Appraisal Scoping report
accompanied the earlier Scope, Issues and Options version of the plan.
Subsequent versions of the emerging Local Plan have been accompanied by a
Sustainability Appraisal and a Habitat Regulations Assessment. The Preferred
Options Local Plan review version published in November 2019 was
accompanied by updated versions of the Sustainability Appraisal and Habitat
Regulations Assessment which were also subject to the consultation process.
These documents form an important part of the supporting evidence to the
local plan review and help the council to assess the possible impacts of the
plan and its policies and therefore how impacts can be addressed or mitigated
against. These processes will continue to be undertaken at each stage of the
Local Plan review.

GDPR/Privacy 1. A privacy impact assessment was completed for the Preferred Options

Impact Assessment

document.

deadlines programmed.

Risk Description How We Manage It Severity of Risk (RYG)
A The quantum of comments received It is considered that with the proposed Yellow
means that officers do not meet the revision to the LDS timetable, officers

will be able to ensure efficient upload
and turnaround of responses.

Page 56




Evidence base requirements emerge
that were unforeseen.

Officers will need to continue to assess
the need for evidence. It is considered
that a delay in the timing of the
publication version in the Local
Development Scheme to July 2020 is
required in order for the evidence
base to be comprehensive.

Yellow

Evidence base being undertaken now
identifies a risk to the Plan being
sound.

Officers will need to continue to
monitor emerging evidence base
outputs. Where the risk of soundness

is identified officers will need to
consider all aspects of this risk before
recommending an alternative Plan.

Yellow

Background documents

Local Plan Review Preferred Options

Relevant web links

Local Plan Review

Local Plan Review Preferred Options
Evidence Base

Neighbourhood Plans

Page 57



https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/downloads/file/1369/local-plan-review-preferred-options
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/planning-policy/local-plan-review/1
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/downloads/file/1369/local-plan-review-preferred-options
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/homepage/85/evidence-base
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/neighbourhood-plans

Appendix A: Summary of key Issues to date*

Key Issues

Officer response

Objection and concern at the consultation
process undertaken by the Council. Suggestion
that not enough was done to promote the
consultation, particularly in those areas where
strategic development is proposed.

The approach taken for the consultation was
reported to members prior to the beginning of the
consultation (Cabinet 12/11/2019). The consultation
was conducted in accordance with the Council’s
adopted Statement of Community Involvement (SCl)
which sets out how the Council will undertake
consultations. The approach to consultation (set out
below) was in excess of the requirements of the
adopted SCI.

The consultation lasted for eight weeks (extended
from six weeks to account for the Christmas and
New Year period) during which;

e Letters (approx.3,200) and emails (approx.
2,400) were sent to all registered
stakeholders on the Councils ‘planning policy
portal’ to advise of the consultation;

e Nine ‘drop-in’ events/exhibitions were held
at venues across the District, including in
those communities where development was
proposed, these were attended by at least
three members of the Spatial policy &
Delivery Team where exhibition materials
and copies of all relevant documentation
were available;

e ‘Un-manned’ exhibition was set up in
Burntwood Library and posters advertising
the consultation were placed in Lichfield
Library;

e Consultation was advertised in the local press
and online via the Council’s website and
social media platforms;

e Members of the team were made available
each day throughout the consultation for
gueries over the phone and in person at
District Council House.

The proposed allocations and strategy within
the preferred options document has moved
away from the settlement hierarchy and
approach set out within the previous
consultation document (Preferred Options &
Policy Directions 2019). Such an approach does
not appear to be based upon the supporting
evidence and results in development being
directed away from certain settlements
identified as sustainable within both the
evidence and earlier consultation documents. In

Preferred options document includes four strategic
development allocations and further allocated
housing requirements to settlements within the
settlement hierarchy. Locations identified for growth
and the associated supporting evidence will be
considered as the Local Plan progresses and the
additional evidence work is completed.

Page 58




Key Issues

Officer response

particular, some representors make the case
that Burntwood should be allocated a greater
level of growth given its location within the
settlement hierarchy and that other settlements
considered to be ‘less sustainable’ within the
evidence and settlement hierarchy are receiving
a higher level of growth.

There is a lack of clarity/justification as to how
the allocations and housing requirements for
settlements have been arrived at.

A site selection paper discusses the approach to
identification of proposed strategic sites. A Suite of
evidence is used in forming a planning judgement as
to the appropriate distribution and location of
growth to meet requirements. The location of
proposals will be considered as the Local Plan
progresses and the additional evidence work is
completed.

Consideration should be given to the
distribution of housing in particular wider
distribution to ‘service villages’ identified within
the settlement hierarchy. Plan as written only
allows for allocated sites, development within
village settlement boundaries or as rural
exception sites. Where settlements are
allocated a housing number the presence of a
neighbourhood plan or neighbourhood area
designation does not necessarily mean sites will
be allocated.

Preferred options document includes four strategic
development allocations and further allocated
housing requirements to settlements within the
settlement hierarchy. Where neighbourhood plans
do not progress and/or do not seek to allocate to
meeting housing requirements such issues will be
addressed through a local plan allocations
document.

The Council should provide less homes to meet
the unmet needs arising from within the wider
housing market area and that the contribution

within the preferred options document has not
been justified.

The previous consultation document suggested the
Council consider testing a contribution of between
3,000 and 4,500 homes to meet unmet needs. The
preferred options document refines this and
suggests a contribution of 4,500 homes could be
accommodated and be deliverable within the plan
period. LDC is working with other authorities in the
wider Housing Market Area through the duty to
cooperate.

The Council should provide more homes to
meet the unmet needs arising from within the
wider housing market area and that the
contribution within the preferred options
document has not been justified.

The previous consultation document suggested the
Council consider testing a contribution of between
3,000 and 4,500 homes to meet unmet needs. The
preferred options document refines this and
suggests a contribution of 4,500 homes could be
accommodated and be deliverable within the plan
period. LDC is working with other authorities in the
wider Housing Market Area through the duty to
cooperate.

Page 59




Key Issues

Officer response

Support for a new settlement approach in
future plan period. However, this is unclear at
this stage.

Preferred Options document sets out the approach
to look for and support a new settlement within the
District in future plan periods.

Objection to proposed strategic housing
allocation to the West of Fazeley (Policy SHA2).
Concern is raised with regard to the following
issues:

e Existing infrastructure, in particular
roads, health facilities and schools, will
not be able to cope with the level of
growth.

e Pressure will be on infrastructure within
Tamworth Borough.

e The scale of the allocation (800 homes)
when compared to the current size of
the village and that such growth is
disproportionate.

e No ‘exceptional circumstances’ to
release Green Belt for development.

The preferred options document details the
supporting infrastructure which would be required
to be delivered alongside the strategic housing
allocation. This includes provision of appropriate
school facilities, access and highways infrastructure.
The District Council will continue to engage with
infrastructure providers to ensure appropriate
infrastructure can and will be provided and planned
for.

There are no ‘exceptional circumstances’
demonstrated to release Green Belt within the
District.

Green Belt Review 2019 makes clear that
‘exceptional circumstances’ would need to be
demonstrated if changes to the Green Belt boundary
are proposed. This has been judged to be the case in
the preferred options document as stated at
paragraph 16.5 in terms of meeting development
needs and the identification of new Green Belt to
the north of Lichfield City.

Objection to the release of Green Belt around
Burntwood for safeguarded land (at Coulter
Lane). A number of responses were also related
to this issue but considered that Green Belt was
being released for development.

The preferred options document does not propose
to release Green Belt at any location around
Burntwood for development within the plan period.
The document identifies land at Coulter Lane to be
identified as ‘Safeguarded Land’ as defined within
national policy. National policy states that
consideration should be given that where changes to
the Green Belt boundary are being proposed then
areas of land between the urban area and the Green
Belt (Safeguarded Land) should be identified to
ensure the Green Belt boundary is capable of
enduring beyond the plan period. The preferred
options document identifies areas of such
safeguarded land in conformity with national
planning policy.

Objection to Green Belt release for
development in Hammerwich off Norton Lane &
Hospital Road and the ‘downgrading’ of Green
Belt in the area.

There is no allocation or development proposed
within the Green Belt in this location. The Green Belt
has not been ‘downgraded’. The Green Belt Review
provides an assessment of parcels of Green Belt as

Page 60




Key Issues

Officer response

required by national guidance but does not change
the status of Green Belt land.

The Green Belt Review 2019 is not a robust
piece of evidence and should be removed from
the evidence base supporting the Local Plan
Review.

The Green Belt Review 2019 has been conducted
based upon the methodology set out within the
document. The methodology was subject two
consultation with external stakeholders and the
public prior to the commencement of the
assessment work. The Green Belt Review has been
subjected to a ‘critical friend’ (ARUP) review to
ensure the evidence is sound.

Burntwood’s infrastructure and amenities do
not adequately cater for the past growth and
any significant increase in its population is not
sustainable.

The proposed settlement hierarchy is informed by
the Settlement Sustainability Study which assessed
all settlements within the District including
Burntwood.

Identification of a strategic housing allocation in
Whittington is a different approach to many
other villages. Why has the opportunity to
identify through a review of the neighbourhood
plan not been afforded to the village.

Site identified was considered to be strategic in the
context of the village of Whittington. Evidence has
been prepared which details the site selection
process.

There is a lack of a specific affordable housing
requirement (set out as a percentage) within
the policy. This does not provide sufficient
clarity for development proposals.

Evidence within the HEDNA suggests the Council will
be justified in seeking to achieve as much affordable
housing as viably possible on appropriate
development sites. Further viability evidence is
being collected which will inform the policy and
provide a clear position in terms of the appropriate
level of affordable housing to be sought.

With regard to employment land it should be
made clear where new allocations are to be
made and where existing allocated employment
areas area. Council should consider whether a
higher employment requirement is required
considering the level of housing growth being
proposed.

Existing allocated employment areas are identified
on the policies maps which accompanied the
Preferred Options document. Current evidence
suggests there are limited additional options for
locating employment growth, this is explicitly
referred to within the consultation document. All
possible options will need to be considered as the
local plan review progresses.

NB

* At the time of writing, approximately one fifth of the representations remain to be processed. Accordingly,

it is anticipated that the list of key issues may be added to in due course.

Page 61




Page 62



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Work Programme
	5 Lichfield City Centre Masterplan Consultation
	LMP001 DRAFT Consultation Report v2 28.02.20
	Appendix 2 - Summary of Consultation Responses v5_020320

	6 Local Plan Review Update



